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. Engineering technology R&D of complete set of power
equipment

. System R&D of complete set of power equipment

. R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment

. Technology transfer, technical consultation and services

. Environmental protection engineering services

The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced production
and research facilities. Its capabilities in research and development,
product manufacturing and power station construction have been
in the forefront of the power plant equipment manufacturing
industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, also known as the “City of
the Power".
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Financial Highlights

AEERFE 5B EERAGHIINT: The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are as follows:

BE+t-A=+t—-HLEE

Unit Year ended 31st December,

By 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
] AE®FT 10,215,670 5,144,246 3,821,280 2,860,696 3,028,914
Turnover Rmb’000
B % A1 4 A AREFTT 168,963 70,336 53,279 36,332 49,326
Profit before tax Rmb’'000
REFF) ARSFT 117,572 53,471 37,691 21,768 39,089
Net profit for the year Rmb’'000
BERE AE®FT 31,015,199 17,513,741 10,605,175 9,857,509 8,693,608
Total assets Rmb’000
BERE AR T 27,361,591 13,992,527 7,146,537 6,908,916 5,735,118
Total liabilities Rmb’000
DR REER ARMFT 540,546 516,189 499,949 21,649 8,721
Minority interests Rmb’000
A% B %S AE#®TFr 3,113,062 3,005,025 2,958,689 2,926,944 2,949,769
Shareholders’ fund Rmb’000
FRFEE AR 2.62 2.53 2.49 2.46 2.48
Net assets per share Rmb
FREF AR 0.099 0.045 0.032 0.018 0.033
Earnings per share Rmb
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Financial Highlights

TEEK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARAFEEAREBRRARNRHELCEERRY The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides

TEWRBAR- corporate management services to its subsidiaries.

BZ2004512A31ALEE BZ20035 128318 LFE
Year ended 31st December, 2004 Year ended 31st December, 2003
RIREROBEREREXNAEM BXE EXAA BRE BENE
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover  Contribution to Turnover Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating operating
profit profit
AEETT ARBB T AEEFT AREEFT
R A%000 R %000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
NEFHEE 7,208,106 559,194 2,898,839 395,225

Main thermal power equipment

KETHEHE 728,162 35,723 517,555 120,359
Main hydro power equipment

BUHTERE 1,180,669 59,675 1,179,968 62,996
Engineering services for power stations

BUHBHELEER 224,614 26,062 147,132 38,473
Power equipment accessories and parts

SERERREMERERS 874,119 82,332 400,752 36,004
A.C./D.C. motors and other products and services

10,215,670 762,986 5,144,246 653,057
Eth kB 157,636 114,915
Profit from other activities
AARIFTEERCER 751,659 (697,636)
Expenses not allocated to major products
BLADE M 168,963 70,336

Profit before tax
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Chairman’s Statement

Mr. Geng Lei, Chairman

ooooaoo To all shareholders:

00D00D0DO00DOD0OO00DOO0ODDO2004 | am pleased to present the annual report of Harbin Power
010100120310 0000000000000 Equipment Co., Ltd (the company) for the year ended 31st
00o0o0ooobobo0ooo December, 2004.

20040 000000000000 0O0DOODOOO In the year of 2004, the economy of China continued to grow
000000000000o0ooDooooon rapidly and the power supply is greatly needed. As one of the
0000000000000 O0o0oDOoODooOO largest manufacture bases in the field of power generation
00o00bD0o0DO00bDOOoDOoOoDOoOoOoon equipments, Harbin Power Equipment Co., Ltd not only met with
oo new developing opportunities but also take the responsibility for

offering good quality equipments and service to Chinese power
development.

20040 0000000000000000O0O0O0 2004 is important year in the company’s developing history. With
doDd0oooobOoboDOoOooOoOoDOoODOOoODOOO the support of sound domestic political environment, great market
ooooooooobDOoOooOoOooooooooO demand, implement effectively on the company's developing
oooonDoooooo strategy and hard working for all the company’s employees, the

company's business has improved rapidly and has made
breakthroughs in many fields.

0000DO00D0O000O200401203100000 The business results grew stably. For the year ended 31st, 2004,

ooooDoOooOoOoooooooaont,7570 the Company recorded consolidated profit after taxation and
goooo0D119.88%0000000000.099 minority interest of Rmb117.57 million, representing an increase
0oooo0oo0ooo1,021,5670 0000000 of 119.88% over last year; earnings per share was Rmb0.099 yuan.
98.58% 0000000000000 DODO0O0ODO Turnover was Rmb10,216 million, representing an increase of
00Do00DO00oDoooo 98.58% over last year. (Pls see details in the section “Management

Discussion and Analysis”).
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Chairman’s Statement

0d0o00DoOoooooO0ooOoOooooooa The rewarding for shareholders grew obviously. In order to reward
0000000000 0oooooooooo our shareholders, The Board of Directors recommend a final dividend

6,0650 00 00000000000DOO0OOO of Rmb60.65 million from the profit of the year available for
0.051000HO0C00D00D00OD0ODOODODODO distribution. The final dividend was Rmb0.0510 yuan per share.
0000000000b000o0ooooooon Dividend of shareholders for H shares will be paid in Hong Kong
00000000000 Oo1t.0e080000HOOO dollars, the exchange rate used, this is HK$1 = RMB1.0608, is based
000.04810 000000 DO200508013000 on average closing rate of the People’s Bank of China during the
0oooz005050130 00000000000 calendar week proceeding the date of recommending final dividend.
0oo The final dividend for every H share will be HK$0.0481. On or

before the day of 13th August, 2005, The dividend will be
distributed to shareholders who have registered on the shareholders’
list by the day of 13th May, 2005.

000D0000O0O00oD0oOo300000000 The officially signed contract value is amounted to 30.2 billion.
do0bDoooDOoDOoDoOooOooobDoDOoooa The Company kept in leading position in large scale hydro power

0000000000 0bOD000O0oOooDOoDo projects, large scale thermal power equipment and large scale heavy
065%0600MWO0000000000100%0 duty gas turbine projects. The market occupation rate for large
00000000049% 000000000000 scale hydro power exceeded 65%. The market occupation rate for
doDooooooooo3eoMwOoOonooooo 600MW ultra super critical thermal power is 100%; The market
do0o0booDoooOOoO0ooOoOoDoOoOooooa occupation rate for heavy duty gas turbine is 49%. At the same
do0o0boO0oOo2o000b00o0ooooooaon time the winning contract of gas-steam combined cycle generation
0000000000000 0D000ODODO unit HRSG island and 300MW large scale pump storage units
ooobooooOooop3eoMmwoOooooOoOd exploited new market filed for the Company. The winning
0000000000000 0DDbOoooooo manufacture contract for 2 units’ nuclear power steam generator
oo of Pakistan Chashma Project pushed the Company to make a big

movement in nuclear power manufacture and laid the foundation
for nuclear power market with great prospects. The winning contract
of 300MW thermal power unit Desulphurization Island shows that
the Company has the capability to manufacture environment
protection products.

dd0o0bD0oOo0oOoooooOoOoDoOoOooooa Leading product system is more perfected and the core technology
do000DO0ooDDOoDODOODOOOooDO has reached to a new stage. The Company took positive actions on
000000700 MWO OO OO600MWOODO0O the absorption of transferred technology and technology renovation
00000ooDoobooo0O0oO0o0ooDooooDO including design and manufacture 700MW large scale hydro power
000D0e00MWO1,000MWOO00DODOODO and 600MW large scale air-cooling thermal power. The Company is

doooooooDOooFibDODOOODODODO capable to design and manufacture 600MW, 1000MW ultra super
dopoooootoooMwOODODOGOGOGOGOO critical thermal power by the way of technology introduce and

ooMwOODooDOoooooooooooooo technical cooperation. The Company has mastered the technology
0000000000000O0ODODODOODOO0DO of assembly and test for 9FA heavy duty gas turbine. The newly
0ooooo signed technology introduce agreements on 1000MW ultra super

critical coal combustion boiler, 300MW large scale pump storage
units, wet desulphurization and desalpetre technology speeded up
the Company’s leading projects’ upgrade and increased leading
competitive capability.
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Chairman’s Statement

000000OO0oO0DoOoDOoOoooOoooooa The production system bear proof and the production capability

ooooboooot200000000000000 have increased rapidly. The production output for three leading
000oobDOo0obOoO0DOoOOoOoDOoODOO units were above 12000MW. It was difficult to delivery the
0 020030 05000 000200401,4000000 equipment according to contract’s requirement. With one year’s
0000000000000 0OD0OD0ODOD0O0000 continuous hard working, the Company has achieved a big
goooo0o0o00000000opooooooo improvement from 5000MW in 2003 to 14000MW in 2004, met its
00000O00oO0ODOoDDODDoOObOODODOODOO commitment to customer, maintained the company’s reputation,

improved the Company's work ability in all fields and made the
Company feel confidence in finish heavy tasks in the following

years.
0000000000000 0D00D00000 The Company’s management system was more and more completed.
dooooooOooooOoDODODODOonoa The company board of directors set up strategy development
000000000000 0O0ODU0OooooDOoo committee, audit committee, nomination committee and salary
oo committee to further complete and regulate the board of director's

operation, which have improved the Company’s management level.

00000000000000D00O0000000 In general, with one year's efficient work, the Company’s
goooooDOooboOOoDbOOoOODOoODOoO manufacture capability has been improved a lot, the Company’s
dooooDo0oO0o0ooOooDbOoDOoDOoDoOoDO profits have increased a lot and the asset quality and operation
ooooooo efficiency was looking up. All employees were working diligently
and confidently and the Company was in a positive developing
tide.
2005000 0000000000000 DO0OOO In 2005, the positive condition of domestic macro environment,
doooooDOo0bOoODOoOoOOoODooDOoO the canonical development of power equipments market and further
d0D0000oooDoOoDOoDOooOonoooDO implement of “Thrive Northeast Old Industry Base" strategy provided
00000000000 Db0oO0DO0O0DOOoODo a sound outer environment for the Company's development. The
00000000000 DO0D0O00O000no results achieved through renovation and development, full contracts

on hand and the improvement in the comprehensive competitive
advantages laid a foundation for the Company’s development in
the following years.

000000ooo005000 00000000 Board of Directors and me is aware that the Company will continue
0000000000 DDOOoOoooDoooooDo to take active actions in all fields, finish production and
0000oooooo0o0000oooooooo management task, improve economy profit and create more rewards
dooo0DoOoooooooOoDoOoOoDno for our shareholders with implement of advanced technology,

international development, system renovation, management
renovation and strategy of regarding human resource as the core
of the Company’s development in 2005.

5
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Chairman’s Statement

0d000DoOo0ODOoODoDOoO0DOoOODOO The Company will speed up the digestion, absorption and renovation
0d0000OO0oDOoOobDOoO0oDOoOOooOoooOoo of transferred technology to strengthen its core technologies and

0dooo0oDDoO0O0O0oOOoOooobooooOoDOoDO knowledge in order to create its own technologies and skill sets. It
00d00000000oDoDooDO00oO0ooooo will reduce design cost and production cost and improve its product
0000000000000 DOO quality by way of improve scientific research design ability. It will

reduce manufacture cycle and enhance productive efficiency by way
of adopting new technology and new process.

d00000DO0DO0O0oDODOooDoOooDOoDOo As the same time of working on the important projects
0000000000000 0O000DODDDOo development, the Company will strengthen on international market
0000000000000 000noooooDo taking general contract for international power station projects as
000000000000 000000DDODoo dominant factor to build the structure that the domestic and foreign

goD0DO0ODO0ODOoDoDoooOoooooooag market can complementary mutually. With continuing to
strengthening cooperation with multinational companies in multi-
levels and all-directional, it will improve its work in all fields, such
as technology, management and marketing etc and speed up its
developing internationally.

d0o000DO0oDO0O0DOoDODOOobDODODO Continuing cost reduction as key process, taking improving product
dd0o00DOoo0ooOOoO0booooDOoOoDODO gross profit as key point, updating cost control system, the Company
oo000oooU0OooUooDoDoOooooboooo will control design cost, sourcing cost, manufacture cost and
0000000000000 00000DOoOooO managing cost efficiently to enhance the Company’s ability of
00000000000 0O0O0ODDODODOO00ODO winning profit. Strengthening control on subcontracts, the Company
0000000000000 0ODODODOODO will complete societalized production organization system. The
doooooDoOOoOooOOoOooobooDoOoDOoDO Company will speed up informationization and takes it as point of
0oDoo contact to push forward the implement on advanced managing

philosophy and managing methods in the Company. Within the
year of 2005, the Company will set up a financial setting account
center to reach a common management on the whole capitals.

d0o000DO0oDO0O0DOoDODOOobDODODO The Company will further regulate training on professionals to

d0o000DO0DO0OooooDOooDOoOoDoooDo create positive conditions for talented people to make progress

doooboobooOooDoooo and give full play to their skills.

oo0ooo0DDODoDOo0OODDODO0OO0OO0OO0OOOooo | believe that the Company will grasp develop opportunity and

200500 00000000DODDDDODOOOOO make greater breakthrough in the work of 2005. The Board of

dooooboooooooo Directors and managers are confidence on the development in the
further.

ooo Chairman

BE Geng Lei

000 -00000000OD0O0DOO0ODOO Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005
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Management Discussion and Analysis

goooooood MACRO-ECONOMY SITUATION AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

00400 0000000000DODODOODOODO In the year of 2004, China economy continued to grow rapidly.
0000095% 000000000000000 The gross domestic product grew by 9.5 per cent compared with
00000000 00000000148%0000 last year. With the rapid development of economy, the demand for
go0o0oo02000000000000000 electric power obviously increased. The electric power consumption
000000O00DoO0DOo00oDoOOoDOooo grew by 14.8 per cent compared with that of last year. Inspite of
dddd0oO0ooooOoooo0oO0OoOooooo this, 26 provincial electric power grids restricted power supply by
60000 0000000000 DUODODUODOO turning off power brakes and the shortage of electricity have
0000000000000 D0OD0O0DDO00DO effected economy development and people’s life. In order to meet
00000000000 bO0oO0D0O0DOOoO0ODo power demand, the power supply construction was speeded up
00oo and the new approved start-up projects for the whole year have

exceeded 60000MW. The step-by-step implementation of the
national policy “To revitalize the Northeast old industry base” has
created a sound policy environment. Now, the Group faces
unprecedented opportunities.

oooo NEW CONTRACTS

0d0D00D00oo0oOoDOoDOoDOooOoooOoooa With positive external environment and rapidly increasing contracts,
do0o00DOoOoOoDooDOoDoDOOoDOoDnonDO the Group adjusted marketing strategy, took “Serving our customer”
0000000000000 O0D00D0o00o as tenet, focused on long term development, and took effort on
0000000000000 00DODODODOO000 unit with big capacities and new products. Consolidating the market
000000000000 00b00D0O000DO occupation rate of regular products, meanwhile, the Group enlarged
godoooDOo0DbOoOoDOoooOoDoOoODOoO its advantages in exploring new products and impelled product’s
03020000000000000200300000 upgrade, which laid foundation for the Group's long-term
0000025900000000085.76%000 development. The new-receiving contracts have already amounted
000000190000 000006.30%0000 to Rmb30.2 billion, which just next to the history record in the
goodeoOMWOOOOOOOOOOOOOO year of 2003. Among which, the main equipments contracts have
45%0300MwWOO000D0OODOOOO0O0O0OO reached Rmb25.9 billion, representing 85.76 per cent of the whole
32%0000000000000066%0600MW contracts; engineering service contracts was up to Rmb1.9 billion,
doD000oo0ooDoOoDOoDOOoOoooDOoDO representing 6.3 per cent of the whole contracts. Among new
O004x700MWO O OO OUOOO OO 300MWO contracts, the market share of 600MW thermal power main units’
goooboOoboo2XeooMwoO OOooooDO product is 45 per cent, for 300MW thermal power main units
oooo0ooo70000000000D00000 product is 32 per cent, for large hydro power units product is 66
00000020000000000000000 per cent. 600MW thermal power main units and large hydro power
000000O00DOoooDoooOooDOoDOoDO units have increased to certain extent compared with that of last

doo00booooboOooDoOoooOoooooo year. Especially, the contracts of 4X700MW Three Gorges Project
right bank large-scale hydro power equipment, Bailianhe 300MW
pump storage hydraulic turbine, Yingkou 2X600MW ultra super
critical units with double casings and double exhausts, 7 gas-steam
combined cycle units such as Zhenhai project in Zhejiang province
and 2 units of Chashma nuclear steam generator in Pakistan have
broadened the Group’s product lines, impelled the Group's
upgrading on leading products and consolidated the Group’s leading
position in its main products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

goooooood R&D AND TECHNOLOGY COOPERATION

200400000000000002.0400000 In the year of 2004, the Group invested 204 million in R&D and
01670 000000000000 DO0OOO completed 167 items of new products’ R&D. Among which, the
sooMwWO 300MWO D OO ODO0O0O0ODOOO 600MW and 300MW thermal power units were upgraded; the
600MWO 1000MWO 0 0 0O300MWO OO OOO 600MW and 1000MW ultra super critical units, the 300MW
goooMwO DOCOOOO0DOODOOOODOO Circulated Fluidized Bed Boiler, the 300MW pump storage project
00000 DOo0DbDOO0ODOoOODOOODOO and heavy duty gas turbine have been researched and developed.
gorF000D0ODO0OD0O0OO0ODODODODODO By absorbing the digesting technology, the Group has mastered
oooDooootloooMWO DO DD OODODO assembly and test skill for 9FA gas turbine. The R&D for the other

soOMWO D OO0 ODDD30oMWOODOOODOOO projects such as Zhejiang Yuhuan 1000MW ultra super critical boiler,
gooooooeooMWO O OO ODOODODOO Changshu 600MW super critical boiler, Kaiyuan 300 MW circulated

oooDooooooooa fluidized boiler, new type 600MW units with 3 casings and 4
exhausts and large-scale pumped storage unit have been successfully
developed.

00oDo000ooooooooDoooOoooo Meanwhile, the Group strengthened its cooperation with

00o0000o0oDDo0o000O0oooooooon international companies and achieved a lot in technology transfer.

0ooeoo-1000MWOODOODOODOOODOOO Within the year, the Group successfully signed with foreign
300-1000MWO 0D OO0DODODODOOOODO companies Technology License Agreement on 600-1000MW ultra

ONOxOODOo(SCRlUODODOoDOooooDoDo super critical boiler; Technology Transfer Agreement on 300-

oooO0ooooooo3oMwOOOoOoooon 1000MW deaerator, SCR and wet fuel gas desulphurization;

gooooMwO0000000000000DOO0 introduced manufacture technology on 300MW pumped storage
gooo000o0o0bDoO0ooDOooDoooooo units and 200MW air cooling steam turbine generation units. The
oooDoooooooooo enforcement of these contracts promoted the Group's leading

products to international level, consolidated and improved the
Group's position in this industry and was of significant meanings
for the Group's further development.

00000000000000002Xe50Mwo 0 The group has achieved significant results for its leading products
0000000000 00ooDaoo?2xesomwa g in the year of 2004. Qinshan Nuclear Power Station Project has
0000000000 DOoO0DOoODOoOono won the first prize of National Science Progress Award, for which
i0000D0O0DeOOMWOODOODODOO the Group supplied 2X650MW conventional island equipment; the
0ooooooo1700000038000000 No. 4 unit of Tianjin Datang Panshan project has set up a new
000000000O00oe00OOOO8OODOO record of continuing operation for 600MW units. In addition, this
002170000000030000000000 unit won special prize in the competition with 38 units provided by
oopoDoOoooooDOoOoDooon 17 power generation companies; the No. 6 unit from Shiliquan

Power Plant won a special prize competed with 217 thermal power
units with 300MW from 80 power generation companies all over
the country, which gained reputation for the Group.

5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RN
0040000000000 MNM, 7570000000

0119.88%0 000 00.099000000¢00.054
ooooobOoDOo311,306

—



gooogogad

Management Discussion and Analysis

ooooond GROSS PROFIT AND PROFIT MARGIN

0o00DoDo0oO0oOoOoooOov7e2990 00000 In 2004, the gross profit of the Group was Rmb762.99 million and

0747%00000052200000 the profit margin is 7.47 per cent, a decrease 5.22 per cent over
last year.

0o0DOo0O0D0DO0OO00oogss9190n0n0n0o0a Among which the profit for thermal power main units were

07764000000587/700000000000O Rmb562.84 million. The profit margin for thermal power main units
0003,572000000049% 000000 was 7.76 per cent, a decrease of 5.87 per cent compared to last
18350 000000000000 DS5,980 000 year. The profit for hydropower main units was 35.72 million. The
0o0gs505%000000029000000000 profit margin for hydropower power main units was 4.91 per cent,
00000o0ooOo2606000000011.60%00 a decrease of 18.35 per cent compared to last year. The profits for
00001455000 0000000000000 power plant engineering services were Rmb59.68 million, the profit
00000082330 000000942%0000 margin for engineering services was 5.05 per cent, a decrease of
ooo400D0000D000DODODODODO 0.29 per cent over last year. And the profit for power plant
0000000002000 0000000000 accessories and parts were Rmb26.06 million. The profit margin for
000D000000000o0ooODDOOOOO0o power plant accessories and parts were 11.60 per cent, a decrease
0oo0DooDoDoo of 14.55 per cent over last year. The profit for the AC/DC motors

and other product and service was Rmb82.33 million. The profit
margin for he AC/DC motors and other product and service was
9.42 per cent, a increase of 0.44 per cent compared to last year.
The main reason for profit margin decrease is that most contracts
for the products sold by the Group in 2004 were signed before the
first half year of 2003, at that time, the contracts were secured at
low prices and the price of raw material continued to grow and
subcontracts were increased.

oooo EXPENSES DURING THE YEAR

2004000 0000000000000068,398 The Group's expenses from operation and administration activities

ooooooooeee2000000000nOonO during the year of 2004 amounted to Rmb683.98 million, an
3,8060 0000 000000O00OOOO?2,3500 increase of 99.62 million compared to last year. Among which,
godoooDooobDOOoDDOOoOOoDOoODOoO labor cost increased about Rmb38.96 million; preparation value for

00000016010 000000000O615000 bad debt and price decrease of stock-in-trade was Rmb23.50 million;
expenses for business activities increased about Rmb16.01 million
due to the enhancement of administration and marketing. The
medical insurance increased about Rmb6.15 million.

gooo FINANCE COSTS

2004000000000004,7890000000 During the period under review, the Group’s finance cost amounted
06,3640 00 000000O0O0OOODODODO to 47.89 million, a decrease of 63.64 million over last year. This
ooooooao was because the Group paid back most short-term loans, which

decreased the number of loans.

5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

uooooouoon FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

d0000DO0DO0O0oDOoODOoDOOoDOOOooo The Group's funding for operation and development mainly has

000d0000o0o0o0oDoOoooDo0ooooooo three resources, they are shareholder capital, customer loans and
000000DD000O000000o0ooooo bank borrowings. The borrowings of the Group will be arranged
0000000000000 00000ODO0O0OO according to specific projects. Except for those special situations,
0000000 oO0DODODODOOoDOoDO the loans will be separately conducted by subsidiaries under the
0oooDoooDoOO0OO0OOOoODboboOoDoOOoOoDOoDO Group. However, the Group must approve the capital investment
000000020040 12031000000000 borrowings in advance. With the dramatic increase of contracts
0 00 227,3660 0 (20030 120 310 O 262,4740 and prepayment, the Group has compensated for most loads for
00000000000 0D0o0DoODo operating funds. As at 31st December, 2004, the total sums of the
000000000000D0O000000000 Company borrowings are Rmb2,273.66 million (that at 31st
078,4200000000022,24200000000 December, 2003 was Rmb2,624.74 million). The Group's borrowings
doDodoDoooDooDOe60O0ODOODOO are loans from various commercial banks and the State's policy
0000000000 DO00DDO148,9460 banks with interest rates stipulated by the state. Among which the
00000 0057,350000 Group's borrowings due within one year were Rmb784.20 million,

an increase of Rmb222.42 million compared to the beginning of
the year. The reason is that Rmb660 million loans for The Three
Gorges Reconstruction and Iran projects would be due within one
year. The Group's borrowings due after one year were Rmb1,489.46
million, a decrease of Rmb573.50 million compared to the beginning

of the year.

oooooon DEPOSITS AND CASH INFLOW

020040 120 31000000000 0O0O0O As at 31st December, 2004, the bank deposits and cash of the
0 559,5690 000 0 0O 0O O 148,3340 OO0 0OOO Group amounted to Rmb5,595.69 million, an increase of 1,483.34
000000000000 0D0720,46300(20030 million over the beginning of the year. During the year, the net
04572000 0 0000000000000 cash used by operating activities amounted to Rmb7,204.63 million
0 40,8700 0 (20030 0 142,4880 0 (DO 00O O (the sum in 2003 was Rmb4,572.01 million). The net cash from
O00000000569,8340 0(20030 O 26,3690 financing activities amounted to Rmb408.70 million (the sum in
0MO00000000000o0oUoonoooo 2003 was Rmb1,424.88 million) and the net cash used by investment
0000000oOooooooooooo activities was Rmb5,698.34 million (the sum in 2003 is Rmb263.69

million). The reason that the Group's inflow sum of cash for
operating activities is big is because of the increasing of new
contracts and prepayment.

uooooouoon CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND ITS CHANGES

02004012031000 0000000 3,101,520 As at 31st December, 2004, the total assets of the Group amounted

00oo0oooo1,350,1460 0000000000 to Rmb31,015.20 million, an increase of Rmb13,501.46 million
2,480,250 0000000079.96%000000 compared to the beginning of the year. Among which, the total
0621,3950 000 0000020.04%0 current assets were Rmb24,801.25 million, representing 79.96 per

cent of the total assets. The total non-current assets were
Rmb6,213.95 million, representing 20.04 per cent of the total

assets.
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RN LIABILITIES

020040 120310000000 00O0O 2,736,159 As at 31st December, 2004, the Group's liabilities totaled

000000001,336,9060 000 0 95.54%0 O Rmb27,361.59 million, an increase of Rmb13,369.06 million and
0o0o0o000002,2271,5780 00000000 95.54 per cent compared to the beginning of the year. Among
83.02%000000135.70%000000000 which, the total current liabilities were Rmb22,715.78 million,
4645810 00000000 1698%00000 representing 83.02 per cent of the total liabilities, an increase of
06.68%1020040120310 000000000 135.70 per cent over the beginning of the year. The non-current
088.22%00000000000ODOO0O0OOO liabilities were Rmb4,645.81 million, representing 16.98 per cent
0ooDoooooog of the total liabilities, an increase of 6.68 per cent over the

beginning of the year. At 31st December, 2004, the Group's current
liability ratio is 88.22 per cent. The reason for the dramatic
increasing is the increase of prepayment.

gooo SHAREHOLDER'S FUND

020040 120 3100000000000 As at 31st December, 2004, the shareholder’s fund of the Company
0311,3060 000 000010,8040 000000 totaled Rmb3,113.06 million, an increase of Rmb108.04 million over
00026200200400000000000 the beginning of the year. The net assets per share were Rmb2.62.
0384%0000002.0500000 In 2004, the Company’s assets-income ratio was 3.84 per cent, an

increase of 2.05 per cent compared with that of last year.

gooooog GEARING RATIO
0200401203000 000000000O00OO As at 31st December, 2004, The Group’s gearing ratio (non-current
000000000000 1.49:1,0001.45:1. liabilities/total shareholders’ fund) was 1.49:1, as compared to that

of 1.45:1 of last year.

goooooa CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND MORTGAGE ASSET

004000 000000O0DOOOODODDOOO In 2004, there was no any contingent liabilities arising from
00020040120310000002.3300000 outstanding litigation of the Group. As at 31st December, 2004,
00002070 0000000000004,8180 the Group’s external guarantee was Rmb233 million, among which
0000000000 Ooooo Rmb207 million was related to contracting projects. In addition,

of pledge assets with net book value of Rmb48.48 million were
used for bank borrowings for working capital.
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goooooouoooon CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND IMPORTANT INVESTMENT

2004000 00000000D0DOODODODO In the year of 2004, the Group invested Rmb720.53 million for
0000072,0530000000001.680000 basic construction and technology renovation and used Rmb168
000009A0D0DODODOODODODO million from the listing proceeds. The main projects were 9FA heavy
00000O0OD0ODODODODOODO0O0O0000000 duty gas turbine, large circulated fluidized bed boiler and heat
000o00O0DDOO0O0O0O0O0D00O030,7580000 recovery boiler. The first stage investment in Seaside Workshop
O0000000028,2580 000 20040 O OOO Construction project of QHD was Rmb307.58 million, among which
000000283490 00000000 OooooO the investment in fixed assets were Rmb282.58 million. By the end
0o0ooo0040400000000000600 of 2004, the accumulated investment was up to Rmb283.49 million.
0000o0s00000000000000000 The assembly factory and test station of heavy-duty gas turbine
000000D0o0D00000b0O000OD0DDOo and relevant facilities were put into operation in April, 2004.
d0o00O00DO0DOoDOobDOoDODOOoDOoDO Altogether 6 units were assembled and 5 units were tested within
000000DDOO0000O0D00O024,7500000 this year. The accomplishment of Seaside Workshop Construction
000oOdDooo21,9000000000011,3960 project of QHD will lay a foundation for the development of heavy-
0ooooooooobDbOoOOoOooooi0,7000 duty gas turbine, nuclear power, 1000MW class ultra super-critical
gooooooooosg30000o0oo0o7,818 product and the other large product and promote the Company’s
0oooobDOoDOoDOoDOoon industry status and competitive capability. In addition, the

investment in large gas turbine projects was Rmb247.50 million,
among which the fixed asset investment was Rmb219 million, the
completed investment was Rmb113.96 million; the investment on
large circulated fluidized bed boiler renovation is Rmb107 million
including the fixed asset investment of Rmb83 million, the
completed investment was Rmb78.18 million. The workshop was
completed and has been put into operation.

uooooooooon EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

0000000000000 20040 120 31000 The Group has certain amount of deposits that are in foreign
00000000ooooe7ss5s00000000 currencies. As at 31st December, 2004, the amount of the Group's
dd0o00DOoOoOoDoDoO0oDoOoOoooOooDOoO deposits in foreign currencies was Rmb675.55 million after
do0oDoDo0O0oO0oD0DOOoO0oO0oOoDoDOoOoOoooOO conversion. The export business of the Group is also settled in
oooooooooooo foreign currencies and there is exchange risk. In 2004, the Group

entrusted the Bank of China to adopt hedging measures for part of
the Japanese yen to avoid exposure to fluctuation in exchange.

uoooon USE OF LISTING PROCEEDS

2004000 0000000001.68000000 The Group used a total of Rmb168 million from its listing proceed

0000ooooo for Workshop Construction project of QHD.

0020040120310000000000HOOO As at 31st December, 2004, the Group used a total of Rmb1 billion
gdoo1o0b0000DOD24000000000 from its listing proceedings and the remaining balance of Rmb240
0d00D0O0D0ODoO0o0DO0oOooDODOOOoDOo million of listing proceeds was deposits in the bank and it will be

used in Workshop Construction project of QHD and other

technology renovation projects.
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gooo INVESTMENT PLAN

20050 000000006400 00D00DOODO In the year of 2005, in order to upgrade products and improve
000000oo0o000000000000O000 core competition capability, the Group are planning to invest
00000o00o0oDO0O0o0000ooO0OOoO0oOoOo Rmb640 million in super-critical project, large gas turbine
gooopoooooOOoOoOOOODODODOOOOOO technology transfer project, Workshop Construction project of QHD,

godoooooOoOoboDoDoooOOoOoDOooooo combined cycle HRSG technology renovation and technology transfer
ooo000o0oOooDoooDOoooooOoooooo and technology transfer and renovation of large pumped storage

do0DoDOo0ooooobDOoO0OO0DDOODDO units projects. At the same time, the Group will buy some key
0000000000000 00DODODODDODOo equipment to solve the bottleneck problems and to enlarge
0000000000000 ooono producing capability. In addition, facing great potential demand of
oooon
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000000O0oO0DooDooooooOooDOooo Third, regarding high-tech products as work core. The Company
000D0DO0D0OO0DbO0ODoOoge0500000000 will strengthen on market development to lay foundation for its
0o0oooOoode0OMWO D DODOODOO continuous development. In the year of 2005, the Company will

oooMwO 000000000000 O0D0O0OOO make full preparation of nuclear power plant biding work on base
0000000000000 0o0oonooooon of consolidating large hydro power units, pumped storage units,
0000000000000 0D0000000 600MW super critical units, ultra super critical, T000MW ultra super
0dDOoooDooO0ooooDoOooDoDOoODODoo critical units and large scale combined cycle units. Also the Company
00D000000DOoDOoDODoOoooDOoDO will speed up on constructing Qinhuangdao nuclear power
00D000DobOoDODO0ooOOoDOoODODO manufacture workshop in order to make preparation on energy
0000000000000 000oonooooo source restructure. Basing itself on the Company’'s continuous
00oo development, the Company will take positive actions on market

development in field of desulphurization, deNOx and wind energy
power products etc. and tap new sources of economic growth. The
Company will strengthen on international market development
mainly in field of general contract for international power plant
engineer project and establish a pattern that the international
market and domestic market compensate mutually.

0000000000 O00ooooOoDoOooDoo Forth, regarding product's profit margin as the core of the

00000 OoO00oODOooOoDOoOoDOooO Company’'s development. The Company will promote its
0oooDo00oDOo0DbOO0ODOOOOoDOODOO management capability by way of “Reduce Cost And Improve
00000D000Do0o0ooooDobDOoboOobDOog Economic Profit”. The Company will strictly control sourcing cost
00000000 0000ODODODO0O000 by way of tendering and concentralized sourcing and reduce
0000oo0oDooo0000o00O0O00DoO manufacture cost by way of value man-hour reasonably and control
o0ooooDOo0DbOO0oDbOOODOoODOoO quality accident. Also it will strictly control management cost and
oopooooooooDOoOoDooo financial cost. The Company will speed up to establish the financial

settlement center to unite the whole Company’s management.
Pushing forwards IT work, taking efficiency as principle, the
Company will establish information platform for share resource and
improve work efficiency and management level.

00D0o000oo0oO0oOoDOoDODooDOoDOoDO Five, regarding set up modern company as the Company’s
dd000bDOoooboOoDOooooDoOoODOoO orientation. The Company will focus on its energy and competitive
0000Db000000000O0ODODOOOO0O capability and deepen its reform. Researching on restructure of
000000000000 O0D0oO0DOooooo business process, the Company will renovate the Company’s
000000000000 Doooo0oDOOoOOonoo business process in reference to experience of advanced companies
d000O0DOO0oDOooOoobDbOoDODODOoDO inside and outside of China. Also the Company will continue to
ooooooooo separate the supplementary business from main business and focus

on main business. Consisting with the policy of reforms for three
systems, the Company will perfect training, selecting, value and
encourage system for technical and managing talents, which will
make talented people show themselves.
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Executive directors

Mr. Geng Lei, 57, senior economist and with a master degree,

aa secretary of the Communist Party Committee and chairman of the
Company and HPEGC. Mr. Geng joined HPEGC in 1968 and has
ooon been director, secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the

former Boiler Works. He began to act as the executive director of
0000000570000 0000000D0O0O0 the Company, chairman and general manager of the Boiler Company

00000000000 0OO0ObDOobooooooo of the Group and deputy general manager of the Company in
000D00D0DOO0000000OO0DDOOOOoOO October 1994. He has been the secretary of the Communist Party
000000000 0bDOobDO0DoOoooooa Committee and vice chairman of HPEGC since August 1997 and in
0000000DO0ObOO0b0ODOoOoOoooooa October 1997, he was appointed vice chairman of the Company.
0000000000bO000oooooooDoo He began to act as chairman of HPEGC in November 1999 and in
0000000000000 0obOOoDooooO January 2000, he was appointed as chairman. Mr. Geng was
00000000000 0O0DbOO0ObOODbOO0ODO appointed by Harbin Institute of Technology as a professor.
00000000oooDoODooOoooooooooo

00bo0O0bO00bOO0O0DbOoOooOoCbooOoDO Mr. Gong Jing-kun, 46, senior economist and with a master degree,
goO00OObOboO0bOObOobDODOObDObO now is vice chairman and general manager of HPEGC and vice
0ooo chairman of the Company. Mr. Gong graduated from Shenyang

Institute of Machinery and Electronics in 1982 and joined HPEGC
at the same year. Later on, he studied in Shanghai Fu Dan University

000000ODOD4600000000D00000 majoring economic management and was conferred master degree.
0oooDo0o000b0OO000b0OOO0ODDOOOoOOoonOO Mr. Gong has been vice manager of production department,
obobOoobooboOooboOoboooOobOoboono manager of hydropower workshop in former Harbin Electric
000000 oOooooooooooo Machinery Works and general manager assistant and vice general
00D0D00D0DOO0000O000DbOOODOoOoonOaO manager of Electric Machinery Company of HPEGC. Mr. Gong was
ooooooo appointed as chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and

Archeng Relay Company Limited in 1999, In August 2000, he was
appointed vice chairman and general manager of HPEGC and in
September 2000, Mr. Gong was appointed vice chairman of the
Company.
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0000000D480000000000000 Mr. Zhao Ke-fei, 48, senior economist, general manager and vice
dood0boO00O0ODOO0OO0ODDOOoO0ObDDbDOOOnDDO chairman of the Company and vice chairman of HPEGC. Mr. Zhao
00o0oO00000DOO00ODDOOO0ObDDbDOOnDDO graduated from Northeast Heavy Machinery Institute in 1982 and
000000000000 O0o0ooooooooo began his master course in the Management College of Harhin
00o00000OoooDo0oo0oo0ooOobOoDbOoD Institute of Technology in 1987. He joined HPEGC in 1982. He was
ooooooo0000000000000000 the engineer, vice chief of Organization Department and vice
0o0O000DO0D0O00O0D0DO0O0O0DO0D0DO director of turbine-generator workshop of the former Electrical
0000000 O0O00D0DDOO0O0ObDDOO0OnDDO Machinery Works. He began to act as head of Organization
000D0OO00bO0OO0O0ODDOOO0ObDDOOODDO Department of HPEGC in 1992 and vice secretary of the Communist
ooDo000DO0DOo0oooDo0ooOoooooon Party Committee, managing deputy general manager of the Electrical
00000000oboooooDoooooooo Machinery Company in 1994 and in December 1995, respectively.
000000000000 000o0oooooo He was appointed director of HPEGC and general manager of the
000o0o0DO0b0DOo0O0oDoDoO0oO0oDo0DOon Company in August and October 1997 respectively. In November
oooooooo 1999, he was appointed as vice chairman of HPEGC and in January

2000 he was appointed as vice chairman. Mr. Zhao was appointed
by Harbin Institute of Technology and Harbin Engineering University
as a professor.

ooodOoboOo4pbo0OoOopoobooo Mr. Duan Hong-yi, 41, senior accountant and with a bachelor
00000000000 O0ODoObDO0bOO0ODO0ODO0ODO degree and deputy general manager of HPEGC. Mr. Duan graduated
0000000 OoO000DOOO0ODDObDOoOonDO from Harbin Electrical Machinery College majoring in mechanics in
000000000 bD000D00O0DO00DOooo 1982 and joined in HPEGC at the same year. Mr. Duan has been a
o0ooO0Do00oO0oO0oDoOoOoDDOoooao comprehensive planner and vice manager of planning department
00000000000 oOooooDoDOoooao of former Boiler Works of HPEGC. He joined in the reorganisation
00000DO00O0bDOOoDooO0oOOoODODODn of HPEGC as share-holding Company and listing of the Company’s
0d0o0oOO00bOOoOO00DO0DDOOoOO0ObDDbOOOnDDO share in 1994. He has been vice manager and manager of financing
0d0o0oOO00bOOoOO00DO0DDOOoOO0ObDDbOOOnDDO department, vice chief accountant of the Company and supervisor,
00000000000 DO00Do0oooooo deputy general manager of Turbine Company of HPEGC and vice

do0o0ood0ooOooooooooooooDoo chairman of Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of
HPEGC since 1995. He was appointed as deputy general manager
of HPEGC in August 2000. From March 2002 to January 2003, Mr.
Duan studied at Young Cadre Training Class of CPC Central School.

ooo0OO00bo0D43poooooonpoobon Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, 43, senior engineer, Master of Business
oooooO0DoOoooooDoOonoooooao Administration, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Shang
o0ooO0o0bDO0o0o0ooOoOoDoOopoooao was a graduate in turbine from Harbin Institute of Technology and
000oO00000DOO00ODDOO0O0ObDDOO0ODDO joined HPEGC in the same year. He was assistant section head,
000DoO0000D0ODO00DODODOOO0OnoO deputy head of the Turbine Research Institute, vice chief economist
000DoO00bDO0o000DOO0O0DODOOoOODoOnDO and vice chief engineer of the Turbine Company of the Group. In
0000000 oOoo0ooooooooooDoo February 1998, he was appointed as deputy general manager of
000000000o0o0oOo0oopooooooo the Turbine Company of the Group and in November 1999, chairman
00o000ooooo and general manager of the Turbine Company. In February 2002,
Mr. Shang was appointed as deputy general manager of the
Company.
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0o SUPERVISORS

oooooao Supervisors representing shareholders
0000000ossoooooooopoooooon Mr. Lang En-qi, 58, senior engineer, director, assistant secretary
000000000 OobDOoooooDooooooa of the Communist Party Committee and secretary of the disciplinary
00000000000 oooboOoObODOO0O00 committee of HPEGC and chairman of the supervisory committee,
0oD0o0o000oDoOOoO0oobooOOoOooDOoOoonoaa assistant secretary of the Communist Party Committee and secretary
0000000DO0ObOO0bDOoDOoOoOoooooa of the disciplinary committee of the Company. Mr. Lang graduated
000000000000 00000000ooDo from Harbin Aviation Industry School in 1968 and joined HPEGC in
000D000000o0Doooo00ooooDoog the same year. He has been workshop chief, head of Organization

0000000000000 0000OO00DoOoDo Department of the former Turbine Works, manager of Turbine
00000000000 O0DOO0ObDOObOO0ODO Auxiliaries Company, vice director and assistant secretary of the

0o0o00O00OO00OO0bDOobDObDOoOoOoooooa Communist Party Committee of the Turbine Company. He was
0000000000000 0O0000O0DO000 appointed as general manager of HTC Industrial Development
000000000 DbO0oooDoDooon Company of the Group in 1994. He began to act as the managing

deputy general manager of the Turbine Company of the Group in
December 1995. In November 1999, he was appointed as director,
assistant secretary of the Communist Party Committee, secretary of
the disciplinary committee of HPEGC and assistant secretary of the
Communist Party Committee and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the Company. In January 2000, he was appointed as
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company.

00000004200000000000000 Mr. Yang Xu, 42, master degree, senior engineer, vice director of
0o0o00O00OO00OO0bDO0Ob0OO0ODOOoOooooog enterprise management and development department of Boiler
00D00D0DOO0000OO00O0bOODooooOaa Company of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from lJilin Industry
0000000000000 O00o0ooooDooono University in 1986 and joined HPEGC in the same year. He has
0000000 DO00b0ooDoDOooooooa been enterprise management staff in the enterprise management
00o00D0000oO00DO0oO0oDoDoOooooo department, secretary of President’s office, assistant director of

enterprise management and development department of the Boiler
Company. In 2002, he was appointed as vice director of enterprise
management and development department.

ooooaoo Supervisors representing staff and workers
000000DOD430000000D0D00000 Mr. Hu Chang-fu, 43, university graduate, senior accountant,
gobo00oO0Ob0OO00OO0ObDOobDODOoOooooooa director of auditing department of Turbine Company. Mr. Hu joined
00Do00D0DOO00b00bOOO0ODDOOOOoOO HPEGC in 1985, he worked for accounting department and general
gooo00oOoooooO0oDOooDOoDooooooa administration office of the former Harbin Turbine Works. He has
0000000 00oO0oDo0ooooo0oooooo been head of accounting and planning department of HTC Industrial
ooooooooooog Development Company and vice director of auditing department of
Turbine Company. In 1997, he was appointed director of auditing
department.
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d00O0oOonoo4s000000noooonooa Mrs. Lu Chun-lian, 45, with a bachelor degree, senior engineer
dood0boO00O0ODOO0OO0ODDOOoO0ObDDbDOOOnDDO and head of coil factory of Electrical Machinery Company of the
00000000 DOO0O0ODDOOO0ObDDOOODDO Group. Mrs. Lu graduated from Harbin Electronics College in 1982
odo0Do0oO0oDOooooooooOooooDon and joined in the Group. She has been an engineer and deputy
00000000000 oOoOopnooooooao director of Insulation Material Department of Electrical Machinery
0000000000000 Oonooooooo Research Institute and director of technology department of coil
oooooOoOooooooog factory of Electrical Machinery Company of the Group. She was

appointed as general manager of coil factory of Electrical Machinery
Company in 2002 and elected as a deputy of People’s Congress Of
Heilongjiang Province in 1997.

oooao Independent Supervisors

0000000 D4400000000000D000 Mr. Li Zhen-hua, 44, with bachelor degree and senior auditor and
0000O00DO0DO0O00OoD0oO0oOOooO0onoo registered accountant, registered asset evaluator and chairman of
0000000000000000000DDO Harbin Zhong Sheng Asset Evaluation Company Limited. Mr. Li
0000000 O0O00QoOoDoOoOoDoDOoooao jointed in work in 1977. He has been a office staff and deputy

000p000o0o0bDoOoooOoooooooog manager of Harbin Audit Bureau and director of Harbin Auditing

0000000 Oo000DOO0O0ODODOOO0ObDOoo Affair Institute. Mr. Li is the executive director of Registered

oooooooo Accountant Association of Heilongjing Province and a member of
Society Of Auditor of China.

gooooo SENIOR MANAGEMENT

0000000 os8000000000Oononoao Mr. Yao Jin-long, 58, senior engineer (professor), deputy general
000000000 OO00D0DOO0OO0ObDbOOO0OnDDO manager of the Company. Mr. Yao graduated from Hefei Institute
00000DO00O000O0ODO00O0O0oO0oDOon of Technology majoring in mechanical manufacturing in 1968 and
000000000b0D00oDO0ooonoooooo joined HPEGC in the same year. He was technician, vice chief of
0ooo0000D000D0O0O0oooooooo personnel department and assistant director of the former Boiler
ooo0oDo000o0oOoO0oDoOoOoDooDOoooao Works of the Group. In 1994, Mr. Yao was appointed as general
00000000000 O0ODO00bDDbOOOnDDO manager of HBC Industrial Development Company of the Group.
oooooooo He began to act as deputy general manager and managing deputy

general manager of the Boiler Company in December 1995. In
November 1999, he was appointed deputy general manager of the
Company.
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000000004300000000000000 Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, 43 senior engineer, master of business
0ooo0D00OO00OO0ObDOoooDoDOoOoooooa administration, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang
0000000bO0CDOobDODOOoOooooaa graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984
000Do000DoDO0o0o0ooooDooooooooag and joined the Group in the same year. He had been engineer of
000D00Dooo0o0oO0o0ooDoOooDoooooag the former Boiler Works, secretary and assistant director of the
00bO0000OO0000O0O0o0oooDboooooo Communist Party Committee office of the Works. Mr. Zhang
0000000000000 0D0DOO0ODDOn participated in the reorganization of the Group and share issuing
000D00D0DOO0000000ODoOoOOoOooaa and listing of the Company in 1994. Since November 1994, he had
00oO00Do0000OO000b0OOO0ODDOOOOoonOO been appointed vice director of the general manager office, vice
0oodoooOoooobDooooDooooooa director of planning department, director of enterprise
0000000000obO0o00oooooooDoo administration department and director of auditing department in
00o0o0o0oooobooooooOoooooooa the Boiler Company of the Group. In 1998, he was transferred to
oo0oooo the Group acting as one member of the Group’s and the Company’s

standing Communist Party Committee and head of organization
department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as secretary of
Communist Party Committee and vice chairman of Acheng Relay
Company Limited, one of the Group’s associated companies. He
has been deputy general manager of the Company since October
2000.

ooOoOoooossooooboboooobobooooo Mr. Sang Hong, 55, senior engineer with a master degree, deputy
ooooooooobOoooooobOoooo general manager of the Company and chairman of Harbin Power

co0o0ooooooooOooDODOOOOOOoo Technology & Trade Incorporation under the Group. Mr. Sang began
ooooobOooobOoboObOboODODno to work for Heilongjiang Production and Construction League in
oooooooooooooooooooooo 1966 and in 1973 he began his study in South China Science and
ooosuonooooooooooooond Technology University. After graduating from the university in 1976,

gobooboboo0oobooooobobooooo
gobooboboooooboobbooooo
gobooboobooooboobbooooo
goobOobooboboboboooooonoo
gooboooOobOobOOobOooboboooooonoo
ob0oboobooboobobooboobooobOoDbo
EREREREIN

Mr. Sang joined No. 39 research institute of the Electrical Industry
Ministry. He had been vice director of research office of this
institute. From 1988 to 1990. Mr. Sang was an undergraduate in
the Management College of Harbin Institute of Technology. He had
been deputy general manager of Harbin Electrical Instrument
Company and general manager of Harbin Technology Company
Limited under the Polytech Group. Mr. Sang joined the Group in
1995, he has been appointed general manager and chairman of
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of the Group. In
October 2000, he was appointed deputy general manager of the
Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

0000000040000 000D00O0O0OODOO Mr. Feng Youquan, 42, master of business administration, senior
000000DO0DO0O0Ooo0oO0oOooOooDoo engineer, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Feng
00000DO00O00DO0ODOOO0oOO0oOOoDOooo graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1985
0000000000 OoDooo0oOoooooDon majored in electrical engineering, and jointed the Group in the
dooooDoOo0DoO0o0ooOoDoOoooooo same year. He was secretary of the Communist Party committee
0000000000000 000D00oooo office, secretary of Youth League of the former Boiler Factory,
000000ODO0O0O0ODO00000DOO00O00O secretary of the Communist Party committee and manager of Pipe

00@Mooo0Od00Do0bDoOo00DOO0O0oDOOoOOonO Subsidiary under Boiler Factory and manager of Heavy Duty Vessel
Factory. He was the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
committee and manager of Commission for Inspecting Discipline of
Boiler Company in 1997. He was the standing committee and deputy
mayor of the city of Tong Liao in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region in November 2001. He was the deputy secretary of the
Communist Party committee of Harbin Boiler Co., Ltd. at November

2003.

oooo COMPANY SECRETARY

O0O0O0O0ObOoO4s0b00000DoDooo Mr. Deng Xian-yuan, 45, bachelor of science, senior economist,
0000000000000 0O0DOO0bOODbDODO company secretary and director of Corporate Administration Office
00000000000 DOO0OO0DO0bDDOOOnDDO and Board Secretaries Department of the Company. Mr. Deng joined
000000000000 0000D000O00o the Group in 1981. He had been engaged in enterprise planning in
o0o0o0O00ooOoO0o0oooOoOooooooDoo the former Turbine Works of the Group for years. In 1994, he
00000oO0obDOoDoO0DoOooooDoooooag participated in the reorganization of the Group and the Company’s
00oobo00Ob0ODOO0OO0ODDOOO0ObDDOOOnDDO shares placing and listing. He was appointed as deputy chief of
00oDO00000D0o00DoOO00ODOoO0bDOonO Administration Office of the HTC Industrial Development Company
000D0OO00D0O0O0000ODOOO0ObDDbOOOnDDO in October 1994 and in March 1995, he began to act as vice director
oodoo0O0o0ooOoOoDoOoOoDoDOoooao of Corporate Administration Office (Board Secretaries Department)
ddoooOoOooooo of the Company and supervisor of the Boiler Company of the Group.

Since the Company’s listing, Mr. Deng has been responsible for
routine work of the Board, information disclosure and other business
relevant to the listing.
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Report of the Directors

00D00D000D000200400000002004 The Directors have the pleasure in submitting their 2004 annual
0120310 000000000000 report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2004.

gooo PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

0d0000OO0oDOoOobDOoO0oDOoOOooOoooOoo The Company and its principal subsidiaries are in the field of power
ddooDo00oDDoO00O0OO0O0OboooOoDOOoODOoDO equipment manufacture, sales and power engineering services which
0015 are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

0000000000000 D0000080.99%0 All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 80.99%
00000000oDo of the Group's turnover is derived from.

0020040120310 0000000000000 The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31st December,

00234600 00000000019.01%0000 2004 amounted to US$234.60 million, representing 19.01% of the

0000000000 O0D0DOOno Group's total turnover for the year. The Group’s export markets
mainly include Asian, African and American countries.

oo SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

0000D400000000000000000 The Company has four principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
0000000000 00ODoOOODOODODDO Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
00000000o0O0o0OoODoOoOoOoDODDoO of hydro generator units and steam turbine units, Harbin Boiler
00000000000 000OO0OoUOooooo Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of boilers
d0o0000DO0DO0O0DO0ODODOOOoOoDOoDO for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of
0d0000OO0oDOoOobDOoO0oDOoOOooOoooOoo manufacture and sales of steam turbine for power stations and
0o00oooo Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of the turn

key construction of power station projects and complete set of
power stations. Boilers for power stations, steam turbine for power
stations and steam turbine units are the three main equipment of
thermal equipment.

02004012031000 000000000000 Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
000oooooooiso 2004 are set our in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

goood FINANCIAL RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
ooooo2004012031000000000D0O The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2004
opoos000000ono are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 50 of

the annual report.

00oo00D0oO0DO0O0DOOoODooOoDOODOOn The Directors recommend the appropriation of profit after taxation

oooDoooooo for 2004 as follows:

1. 00000000000 01,166000 1. To transfer Rmb11.66 million to the statutory surplus reserve.

2. 00D00o0o0ooo0Don,leed O 2. To transfer Rmb11.66 million to the statutory public welfare

fund.

3. gooooo00505013000000 3. The Directors recommend that the dividend for shareholders
0000000000000 00o0o00 who registered on shareholder’ list until 13th May, 2005 is
000.05100000000D 0 06,0650 Rmb0.051 per share, payment of dividends is totally
oo amounted to Rmb60.65 million.

gooono DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

0000000000000 D00O0D00O0000 Details of directors and supervisors are set out in the Section

00Do00DooDooo Director, Supervisors and Senior Management. of the annual

report.

gooooooooooouoood DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

02004012031000000000000000 As at 31st December, 2004, none of the directors, supervisors and
0000000000000 O0D000D0Oon senior management of the Company had any interest or short
dodio0DOOO0OO0ODODOODODOOoDO position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
d0000DOoDo0DOO0DOoDOoDoDOOoDO case may be) of the Company of any of its associated corporations
O00000000ooooooo70080000O (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to
00000000000o00oDooooooon be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7
0000o00oo0000000oooDooonoo and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position
000000000000 0Do00oooooo which any such director, supervisor or senior management is taken
000000mooO000o0o0oUoooOss2 or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
dooDoDo0oOooDDOoOoOoOoDDoDOoOoooD required to be entered in the Register kept by the Company
dooooDoO0obDOoO0ooDOoODoODOoODDO pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was required to be
000000oO00o0Oboo0oDOO0DoOoOoODo notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code
oooooooo for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies as

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

5
52 |-



Oooooano

Report of the Directors

ugooooogoood DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

gooobooooooooOoooOoOoobbooo There are service contracts between every Director, supervisor and

02006060200 00000000000000O0O the Company. The contracts will expire by 20th June, 2006 and

000000000000o00ooooooog can be terminated without compensation (legal compensation is

00ooo not included). Besides this, there are no existing and suggesting
service contracts between every Directors, supervisor and any of its
subsidiaries

oooooooooooooo DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

g000oo0O0ooo00ooo0oOoooooooo Apart from service contracts, no contract of significance, to which

ooDo0O0ooDOoOoooDooDDoDo the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or supervisor of the Company had material interests in
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at
any time during the period.

goooooo REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
0020040120310 000000000000D0O Details of the salaries and bonuses of the directors or supervisors
0000000oooooooooion of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2004 are set

out in Note 10 to the financial statements.
goopoobogoboood FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

do0oooO0oDoOoDOoDOooDoOoDOoODODOon The five highest paid personnel of the Company during the year
are all directors and supervisors.

goooooooo RETIREMEMT BENEFIT SCHEME
d0o0o0DOoO0oDOoO0oDoDOoOoDOoODDODO Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in Note 37 to
o037 the financial statements.

ooond FIXED ASSETS

jo0o00oO00OooDOoOoOoOoOoDOoOoOOoo Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out
0140 in Note 14 to the financial statements.

0o RESERVES

020040 12031000 00000000DOOOO The Company’s reserves available for distribution are 62.44 million
00062440 J0000L00OODOOOOUOUDOO until 31st December, 2004. Movements in the reserves of the Group
oooDo0O00oDOoO0oboDoDOoOoDoOOooon during the year are set out in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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oooo FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

dddd0O0O0OO0OOoO0OoOoOoOoOoOOoODOOO The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set
0ooaoo out in the Section Financial Highlights . to the annual report.

ooooooon BORROWINGS AND INTEREST COSTS CAPITALISED

00oo00bDo0DO00DOOoODooOoDOoODOOn Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set

000260280 out in Note 26 and 28 to the financial statements.
0000000000o0o0o0oooooooooo Interest capitalized by the Group during the year amounted to
544.40 00 Rmb5.444 million in respect of construction-in-progress.
gooooooooooooood PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES
0000000000000 0D00000000 No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities
0oo0DooDooaoon has been made by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the period.
goood PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
00000000000000DO00D00000 According to the Article of Association of the Company and the
0000000000000oDoooDoooon laws of the PRC, there are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
oo requiring the Company to offer new shares to the existing

shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.
gooooo MAJOR LITIGATION

0oDo00DO0DO0O0O0o0oooong The Company was not engaged in any major litigation of material
importance during the year.

gooo MATERIAL CONTRACTS
0000000000000 0D00000O The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed in the
00Do00DooDooo Section Management Discussion and Analysis of the annual report.
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gooooood MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. do0ooobDoOooboooOoDoDOooo 1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
00012450000000000000 attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
0000oooo0oo0oooooos.210 12.45% of the Group's total purchases. Among which the

largest supplier is Wuyang Iron Co., Ltd., presenting 3.21%.

2. gooboOdobobOOoOobobOoODbDbDOooO 2. 17.94% of the total turnover of the Group during the period
ooo017940000000000000 was attributable to the Group's five largest customers.
0000000004.690 Amongst which the Hancheng Project was the largest

customer, accounting for 4.69% of the total turnover.

3. 0000Qooooooooooooooa 3. None of the directors, supervisors, their associates or any
0000O0000005% 0000000 shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
gooboooOooOooooooboobooo the directors own more than 5% of the Company's share
oo capital) has any interest in above mentioned suppliers or

customers.

HOOOOOOOO PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES ISSUE

000000000D00000OoDOooono The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period details

000oooaoo in the Section Management Discussion and Analysis . of the annual
report.

goooooogood ENTRUSTED DEPOSITES AND OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

0200401203000 0000000DO00ODOO As at 31st December, 2004, the Company had no entrusted deposits

0000000000000 00D0000000 in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions and had no

due deposits that had not been withdrawn.
oo INCOME TAX AND EXPORT VAT REBATE

0000000000000 000D19940 3029 Pursuant to the regulation of the Notice on Several Preferential

000ooo0oooooooDOobOooDooo Income Tax Policies issued by the PRE Ministry of Finance and the
goooboboo0oooobbboUuooobobooo State Tax Bureau on 29th March, 1994, the high technological
0000000015% 0000000000000 enterprises in the high technological development zones approved
0000000000 DO1%% 00000000 by the PRC State Council enjoy an income tax rate of 15% in main
dobDoDooO0ooDOOOoDOoOoooooOoO subsidiaries, so the taxable income earned by the Group are subject
0000000000000 DD0ODODO15%000 to a rate of 15%. So the Board of Directors of the Company holds
00ooo that, according to the relevant requlations of PRC laws, the Group

still enjoys an income tax rate of 15% in main subsidiaries.
000000000000 20030100150000 Pursuant to the stipulations in the document of the PRC Ministry

000000000 DOO0ODbODb0O0O13%0 of Finance, the export VAT rebate applicable to the Group’ newly
signed export products contracts is 13% from 15th October, 2003.
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uoooooon CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

0000000o0o0o0ooooooooo The Audit Committee have, in such capacity, reviewed the connected
3300 0000000000000 00000 transactions referred to in Note 38 to the financial statements and
confirmed that:

1. do0oooDoDoOoO0oboOooOoDDOoOoo 1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company
000000 in the ordinary and usual course of its business; and
2. 000o0o0o@ooooooooooooo 2. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
000000000000 00D00DO commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
000o000DOoooooWpooooo reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made
00000000 0O0oooooooooa by similar entities with PRC) or (ll) (where there is no
0o000o0oooooooo available comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable
so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned;
and
3. go00OoWooooooooooooo 3. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in
Opoooo0ooooooooooooao accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
0000o0oooooooo governing such transactions or () (where there is no such

agreement) on terms no less favorable than terms available
to third parties.

goooon QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

000000000 D0O000D0D0DOO3.2400 The Company already has an accountant who meets the regulations

00000000000 00O0OOooUoOooooo set out in article 3.24 of the List Rules, but he is neither a fellow
000000000o00o0ODOO0oooooooog or associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants nor
0000000000000 00DoDoDooooDO of a similar body of accountants recognized by that Society for the
gooooooOooobooOoOoOoOoooboooog purpose of granting exemptions from the examination requirement
0od0o0o00O00O0oOooOoOooooDooOa for membership of that Society. Therefore, the Company will employ
d0o00O0DOoDoOOoOoDOOOoDOOOoDOo a person who meets the above-mentioned qualification to assist

the Company's accountant in supervising the Company’s financial
reporting procedures and internal controls. Until now, the Company
has not found such a suitable person yet.
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ooooooon BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL COMMITTEE

ooogzo040802700000000000 The Company established Board of Director Special Committee in

0o0o0000000opooo0oooDooDooo 27th August, 2004, including Strategy Develop Committee,
0000000000000 0O0ODODODODOO000 Supervisation Committee, Salary Committee and Nomination
0000000000000 0000oooooo Committee. Strategy Develop Committee is consisted of 5 directors.
dooO000ooO0oOoO0oO0O0O0OoOoOooooooo Among which, 3 members are executive directors and 2 members
0oo00o0DO0DO0o0O0ODOo0oooooooon are non-executive directors. Supervisation Committee is consisted
0000oobDOoO0bDOoOoOoooOoOoooOooDoO of 3 directors. Among which, 2 members are independent non-
000000000 DO00ODDOODDOOODOo executive directors and 1 members are non-executive directors.
ooooooDooDoo Salary Committee is consisted of 3 directors. Among which, 2

members are independent non-executive directors and 1 members
are executive directors. Nomination Committee is consisted of 3
directors. Among which, 2 members are independent non-executive
directors and 1 members are executive directors.

oooobooobooobooo THE CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

00oo00bDo0DO00DOOoODooOoDOoODOOn The Company has already received the Annual Letter of

000D00D0O0D0D00O000O00D0O0003.13 Confirmation from every independent non-executive director on

000000000000000000D00 their independence. Their independence accord to every
independence index issued in article 3.13 in List Regulation and
they are independent person.

oooo SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

0 20040 120 31000 0O O O OO As at 31st December, 2004, the share capital structure of the

0 1,189,151,000000 0 00 0 O O 720,000,000 Company comprised of 1,189,151,000 shares, of which 720,000,000

O0000006055%000H00000 shares were held by the promoter (representing 60.55% of the

469,151,000000000039.45% 0000000 entire share capital) and 469,151,000 shares were held by overseas

oooo0oO0obooOoobooo H shares investors (representing 39.45% of the entire share capital).
The Company did not issue any stocks in the year of 2004.

goono NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

0200401203000 0000000DO0OOO Details of the Company’s registered shareholders as at 31st
oo December, 2004 were as follows:

oo0o0oOoOooDoOoooooo 1 Holders of State Shares (held by the Promoter) 1
HOOOO 121 Holders of H Shares 121
oooao 122 Total number of shareholders 122
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uooon TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS

02004012031000000000000000O At 31st December, 2004, the top ten registered shareholders who

000oo0oooooo0o00o0o hold the most shares were as follows:
oo goooao
0ooo Number of Percentage of 00
Name of Shareholders Shares Shares Holding Remark
oooooooaoo 720,000,000 60.55% ooooao
Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation state shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 457,890,798 38.50% HO
H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited A/C BR-1 7,410,000 0.62% HO
H shares
Cheung Yum Tin 460,000 0.04% HO
H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Ltd 254,000 0.02% HO
H shares
Li Siu Kei 250,000 0.02% HO
H shares
Tang Lai Ming Cavini 250,000 0.02% HL
H shares
Yang Tak Kee 120,000 0.01% HO
H shares
Au Lei Man 100,000 0.008% HO
H shares
Chan Suk Wan 100,000 0.008% HO
H shares
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HOIODODOOOOODOO?2004012031000 INTEREST'S IN THE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF HOLDERS OF
oo H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS LIST AT 31ST
DECEMBER, 2004)

oo 000 000O0oHOOOO
Scope (number oo Number of Percentage to
of shares) People Number Share Holding Issued H Shares
1-1000 1-1000 3 202 0.000%
1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 24 58,000 0.012%
5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 37 336,000 0.072%
10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 50 2,122,000 0.452%
100,001-0 0 100,001-above 7 466,634,798 99.464%
oo total 121 469,151,000 100%
goooooooooo CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

goodoz2004000000000000000 The Company obeyed the regulation of Code of Best Practice of

oo0ooboOooOoOoDboono Stork Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at any time in 2004.
0000000000 D0o0D0O0Doo0no Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
00000000 00DO0DO0ODo confirmed that all directors have complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies within the period under review.

gog AUDITORS
oooo0ooooooo- 0000000000 Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

0000000000000 000DbO000D0O0 Certified Public Accountants Limited have acted as auditors of the
Company since its date of incorporation.

goooao On behalf of the Board of Directors

ooo Chairman

00 Geng Lei

gpgoooooooooooooooao Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended at 31st December, 2004, all members of the
supervisory committee (“the Committee”) of Harbin Power
Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”) fulfilled their
Supervisory of Committee functions in accordance with the
regulations of the PRC Laws on Companies, the Listing Rules of the
HKSE and the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Committee had reviewed documents submitted by the Company
and supervised the Company's productive and managing activities
and the manager level members’ work performance by way of
participating the General Meeting and the Company’s Board of
Directors meetings and setting up supervisory committee meetings.
In addition, the Committee had participated actively big events,
such as the Company’s production, management, technology
renovation and investment plan etc. and gave a lot of positive
opinions and suggestions, which pushed forward the Company’s
work. The Committee’s specific duties are as follows:

1. During the period under review, the Company operated
strictly according to national laws, regulations and
regulations and procedures for List Company. With carrying
out every resolutions of the General Meetings, deepening
reform, strengthening management and working with the
strategy of reducing cost and improving efficiency, the
Company had finished production and operation task in all
fields and achieved its target. In general, the managing
results are satisfied.

2. The Committee is aware that the directors, the managers
and other senior managers have actively carried out their
duties in accordance with relevant regulations of the Articles
of Association of the Company and in the best interests of
the shareholders. In addition, they carried out carefully the
resolutions and decisions from the General Meetings and
Board of Directors. They have not abused their powers to
act against the interests of the shareholders and the
Company.
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3. The Committee has reviewed the Company’s financial system
and financial situations and got the conclusion that the
Company’s organization and system of the financial section
is completed. In addition, with further strengthening capital
management, cost management, contract management and
management and research on asset disposition, the financial
work was operated step by step according to inner control
system and financial management system and ensured the
capital operate safe and efficiently. The annual financial
statement and dividend distribution scheme and the related
documents submitted by Board of Directors to the annual
General Meeting for review can truly reflect financial
situation, asset situation and operation results of the
Company. They have not abused their powers to act against
disciplines and regulations.

4. The Committee reviewed work report of the Board of
Directors. These reports truly, fully and fairly reflected the
Company’s every operation in this year.

5. The Committee is aware that the connected transactions are
done in fair and reasonable principle. They have not abused
their powers to act against the interests of the Company
and shareholders.

6. The Committee is aware that with further strengthening
management and improving economy benefit, the Company
should continue to improve its payoff capability and level
and keep continuable developing tide.

The Committee sincerely appreciates trust and supports from every
employee of the Company and shareholder. With positively exploring
new supervisory approach and method, establishing detailed
supervisory and inspect method, the Committee will performance
supervisory function better and work hard for achieving production
and operation target in 2005 of the Company.

For and On behalf of the supervisory committee
Chairman

Lang en-qi

Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005
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goooooo TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING
0000000O0o0DOoDoDoOobOooOooDog The Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation the
00o00o0o0ooo0ooooboOooooDoo shareholder of controlling shares, which is a stated-owned company

registered in The People’s Republic of China.

doo0000O0ooOOOooooDOoOooOoOooDOoooo The Company protects shareholder’s profit. Shareholders as the

00000000000 000D000000O0OoOO owner of the Company enjoy rights regulated in laws and
0000000000000 oDobOoODOOo0oOo0g regulations and shoulder commensurately obligations. The Company
0000000DO000000000O0OOonDOo will treat every shareholder equally and initiate shareholders to

do000o0oOoDoOoooDoOoOoooooooOoo join in the Company's management. The shareholders enjoy rights
0ooDo0b0OO0oO0bDOO0O0DOoOO0DOoOoDbDOoOoono to information and rights to decision-making for the Company's
big events. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the power
organization of the Company, and it exercise its functions and
power according to laws. At the approval of connected transactions,
the shareholder with common interests should give up to vote at

the General Meeting.
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SPECIAL COMMITTEE

In order to further improve corporate governance structure and
operation level, the Company set up several special committees
under Board of Directors on 27th August, 2004. The organization
and functions of each special committee are as follows:

A.

The auditing committee is consisted by 3 members: Ding
Xuemei (independent direct), Zhou Daojiong (independent
direct), and Duan Hongyi. Ding Xuemei is the chairman for
this committee. Main responsibilities: make decision on
employing and fire auditors outside the Company; make
decision on auditing fees; supervise the Company’s inner
auditing system and it enforcement; responsible for the
communications between outside audit and inside audit;
supervise the conformability between the Company and the
accountant major standard and security exchange; review
the Company’s mid stage results and annual results and
communicate with the domestic and foreign auditors on the
existing problem; supervise the Company’s inner control
system and review the Company's important connected
transactions; review and supervise the existing and potential
risk; the other issues authorized or entrusted by the Board
of Directors.

The Salary Committee will be consisted by 3 members: Li
Genshen (independent director), Du Xingyou (independent
director), Liang Weiyan. Li Gengsheng is the chairman of
this committee. Main responsibilities: research on the
Company's salary system and salary policy and give advice
and suggestions; draft the Company's directors’ and the high
level managers’ salary; review and evaluate the Company’'s
directors’ and the high level managers’ results and salary;
the other issues authorized or entrusted by the Board of
Directors.

ﬂh
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gooobooon SPECIAL COMMITTEE (continued)

00 O00O0O0O0ODb300b0boOopoOoDo Nomination Committee is consisted of 3 members: Dou
0MOoo0oo0Doo0oo0moooooooa Xingyou (independent director), Ding Xuemei (independent
00Do00O000O0poooooooooon director), Duan Hongyi. Dong Xingyou is the chairman of
0000000ooo0oooDoooooo this committee. Main responsibility: give suggestions to the
ooDooOoooobDOoooOooOooooo Board of Director on the scale and structure according the
gpoooDOooooobDOoDooooooO Company’s operating condition, asset scale and stock right
0000oQoooooooboooooooao structures; research the selection standard and procedures
0o0oooboooooOooDOooOoOoono for director and managers and give suggestions to the Board
0o000ooooooobDoooooo of Directors; search for qualified directors and managers
0o0000D0o0oooooooooon aboard.; review and give suggestions on the candidates for
ooooooooooo directors and managers; review and give suggestions to the

other high level manager be proposed to the Board of
Directors for employment; the other issues authorized or
entrusted by the Board of Directors.

00 0000000D0500000000000 The Strategic Development Committee consists of five

ooboob0moobooobOOoo0Omoo
goobooooobooooooooooo
goooooobooboobooboobooo
gobobOoboooooobooooooo
gobobooooboboooooooo
gbobOoooobobooooooobooo
obobooooobOooOooobooobooo
obooooobooboobooboooboo
goooobooo0obOoo0ob0oDoo

5
OF =

members: Gong Jing-kun, Li Gen-shen (non-executive
director), Liang Wei-yan (non-executive director), Shang
Zhong-fu, Wu Wei-zhang. Gong Jing-kun is the Chairman of
this committee. The main functions are: studying the
Company’s long-term development strategies and plans and
presenting ideas and suggestions; studying the important
investment and financing plans which need the approval of
Board of Directors and presenting ideas and suggestions;
studying the important capital operation, assets operation
projects which need the approval of Board of Directors and
presenting ideas and suggestions; studying the Company’s
legal representative governance structure and administration
system and presenting ideas and suggestions; other issues
authorized or entrusted by the Board of Directors.
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ugon SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

dd000D0oO00ODOo0O0oDOOoODOoOoooo The supervisory committee holds responsibility to all shareholders

000000000000000000DO00OO and gives efficient supervision that whether duty implementation

oooooooooooo taken by finance professional, general managers and senior members
is complied with laws and regulations and to protect all
shareholders’ legal interests.

0o0o0oooos5000000 The supervisory committee of the Company is consisted of 5
Supervisors.

0oooz00400000200000000000 The supervisory committee had 2 supervisory meetings in 2004 for
dooDOoOoDOooDoDOoO0ODOOODOOOnO reviewing the Company’s finance report. The supervisors should
attend all the meetings hold by Board of Directors.

ooooooo INFORMATION PUBLISHMENT AND SUPERVISION

0000000000000 00O000DOoDOo In order to improve the Company’ transparence, the Company pays
doooooDDOO0OO0ODOO0OO0DOO0oDOOoOoDOoDO attention to communicating with shareholders and investors. The
do0000oooDOoDOooooDooDOoOoDoOoo Company will publish information actually, accurately, completely
goboboooooboOooOoooOoooooooa and timely strictly according to laws and regulation, Company’s
0000000000000 000000000 regulations and listing rules. At the middle stage, after the publish
0000o0ooo0o0ooOoooDoooooooo of annual achievements report and big investment decision,

00000000000 0000DO0ODODOoon recommend and introduction meeting of market analysis
organization, press conference and one - one discussion with
investment organization will be hold at least twice every year. The
Company strengthened its supervision on connected transaction,
and all connected transaction must be reviewed by independent
boards.

do0oDoDO0o0oO0oDoDOOoO0O0OOoDoDOoOoOoOooO The Company will do its duties, continuously complete its

goDo0DO0ObO00DoO0o0o0OO0DOoOoDOoDOoDO management, improve its management level according to laws and

0oopo0D00OO00OO0bO0DOoDOoOoooooa regulations of negotiable securities supervisory organization,

000 continiouly perfect the Company's management, promote
management level and optimize the Board of Directors’ decision
ability,

i
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Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT
COMPANY LIMITED

REEBIRERDBRAT

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 96 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
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Auditors’ Report

BER Opinion

go0o0O0o0do0oOoOoOoOooooOooooo O In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
000 0OD0O0OO0O0O0DODOO0oO0OoDoDOoOoOoO the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31st
0000 DDOOOOO0ODOOO0OO0ODDOOOoOO December, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for

0o0oDoooo0oO00DDOobDO0O0ODODODOO the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.
EHBEERA G Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ooooo Certified Public Accountants
gooooooooononoo Hong Kong, 16th April, 2005
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___ Consolidated Income Statement ____________________

—EIZNE+_-_A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

2004 2003

oo ARE TR ooooo

NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000

oooooo Turnover 5 10,215,670 5,144,246
ooooono Cost of sales (9,452,684) (4,491,189)
oooooo Gross profit 762,986 653,057
oooooOo Other operating income 7 153,513 108,389
oooo Distribution costs (117,178) (98,337)
oooo Administrative expenses (566,802) (486,025)
ooooon Other operating expenses (19,790) (1,749)
oooOo Profit from operations 8 212,729 175,335
oooo Finance costs 9 (47,889) (111,525)
oooDoOo0oo Share of results of associates 4,123 6,526
ooooao Profit before taxation 168,963 70,336
0o Income tax expense 11 (27,034) (14,090)
goooao Profit after taxation 141,929 56,246
ooooono Minority interests (24,357) (2,775)
goooa Net profit for the year 117,572 53,471
0o Dividends 12 9,513 7,135
0oo000ODoOoO Earnings per share - basic 13 9.9 cents 4.5 cents

o |-
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

00000000000 DOO At31st December, 2004

2004 8,120
oooo Trade debtors 19 2,459
00D0DO00D0o0O0OD0OoD0O Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments 5,906
doooooag Amounts due from customers for
contract work 20 1,013
oooooooao Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 217 32
goooa Investments in securities 17 1,672
ooooooao Pledged bank deposits 36
oooo Bank deposits 1,035
doooooag Bank balances and cash 4,560
24,801,247 14,980,592
good CURRENT LIABILITIES
ooooooao Amounts due to customers for
contract work 20 607,981 71,873
oooo Trade creditors 22 2,381,212 1,475,544
O0o0Oooooon Other creditors and accrued charges 262,455 341,172
ooOoo Deposits received 23 18,621,301 7,151,541
ooooooooo Amount due to ultimate holding
company 24 36,133 29,970
oooo Tax liabilities 25 22,499 5,813
oooooooooo Borrowings — due within one year 26 784,200 561,779
22,715,781 9,637,692
gooooo NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,085,466 5,342,900
goodoooooooa TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,299,418 7,876,049

Hh



OO0O00000Gooo

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

D00O0D0D0DO0OO0O0OO0O0O00 At 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
oo ooooo ooooo
NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000
goooa CAPITAL AND RESERVES
00 Share capital 27 1,189,151 1,189,151
goooooo Share premium and reserves 1,923,911 1,815,874
3,113,062 3,005,025
ooooon MINORITY INTERESTS 540,546 516,189
ooooao NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
gooo Deposits received 23 2,878,848 2,014,878
gooooooooo Borrowings - due after one year 26 1,489,462 2,062,957
ooooooooo Advance from ultimate holding
company 28 277,500 277,000
4,645,810 4,354,835
8,299,418 7,876,049
gpoos000%0000D000b0nDooooag The financial statements on pages 50 to 96 were approved and
0000000000000 0D00DO0DOOOO authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16th April, 2005
oooooooo and are signed on its behalf by:
ooo ooad
Zhao Ke-fei Shang Zhong-fu
oo oo
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

5
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Balance Sheet

R-ZZEFEWNE+_-_HA=+—H At 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
oo AR%FT ooooo
NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000
*(RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
oooo Property, plant and equipment 14 298,891 97,532
goooooo Interests in subsidiaries 15 2,518,612 2,712,959
goooooo Interest in an associate 16 49,730 40,100
gooooao Investments in securities 17 17,879 14,300
2,885,112 2,864,891
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
0o Inventories 18 86,288 -
ooon Trade debtors 88,976 1,807
0000000 o0oooon Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments 59,578 4,285
ooon Bank deposits 323,436 367,103
ooooooao Bank balances and cash 85,952 161,694
644,230 534,889
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ooono Trade creditors 44,881 2,495
0oooDoCooOoDO Other creditors and accrued charges 9,416 10,144
o000 Deposits received 23 85,311 48,342
oooDoooooo Amount due to ultimate holding
company 24 7,950 7,950
ooon Tax liabilities 736 699
O0o0oOoooooo Borrowings - due within one year 26 135,000 90,000
283,294 159,630
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 360,936 375,259
NBRRBEEENAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,246,048 3,240,150
BRAR R % CAPITAL AND RESERVES
00 Share capital 27 1,189,151 1,189,151
ooooooao Share premium and reserves 1,698,397 1,632,499
2,887,548 2,821,650
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
goooooooboo Borrowings - due after one year 26 315,000 375,000
oooDooooon Advance from ultimate holding
company 28 43,500 43,500
3,246,048 3,240,150
izl EHE
Zhao Ke-fei Shang Zhong-fu
Ex EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-SESMEF=A=+—ALFE o 0 3 2,6 0315 2 ¢l or 2004

k& Ex R R &
kx e ARe 1Re Mg A @t
Statutory ~ Statutory  Statutory
Share Share capital surplus public ~ Retained
capital premium reserve reserve welfare fund profits Total

ooooo  ooooo  oooogo  ooooo  OOoDO0 00000 COO0O0
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000

31| (N

) ) ) ) )
00oo0oooooo p 15 gy 2003 (RIANN 8.1 0“8 0 il $8.20 10411 248 @8¢
oooo Pr. f.rnaﬂ ') \ %4] 3,41
00 ansﬂ fs 43 '3 (1%,44%)
00 s (13) (,13)
) ) ) )

0000000000 " 1; gy 2004 1,891 1 8% 1 080 $8 124 L 131,004 3,00 ,02
0000000000 uag “: p dses,

of’anan sV gy (36) () 2 (22)
oooo Profl f.rnaﬂ ) \ 11, 2 11, 2
og r sﬂ Is 2, 8¢ JERR (4‘, ‘) \
00 JM ot (‘ 13) ¢, 13)

RZBEMET-A=1+-H At 31st December, 2004 1,189,151 788,155 709,850 113,877 121,112 190,317 3,113,062

ALH (. F“; ) )

0000000000 Gt o' Jy 2003 (AR N 0*% 0 183 283 k0 B3
0ooo Profl, f. T 48 48
il rsh s 130 1300 (10,260)

il M nds (13) (13)

) ) )
000000oooo W s gy 2004 (AR N 0*% 0 313 313 *E8 2860
oooo Pr.f f.r n ¥i A1 A1
il Fash s 11,66 11,66 (23,330)
)

oo Md os L) ¢, 13)

R-FEMETZA=T-H At 31st December, 2004 1,189,151 788,155 709,850 68,978 68,978 62,436 2,887,548
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

O000000o0ooooooDOoOgg For the year ended 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
ooooo ooooo
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
gooo OPERATING ACTIVITIES
ooon Profit from operations 212,729 175,335
ooooooo Adjustments for:
ooooo Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 1,360 6,112
ooon Allowance for inventories 10,822 5,680
0ooooooo Dividend income from unlisted
oooC investment securities (645) (222)
ooooao Depreciation and amortisation 241,042 208,205
oooooooo Gain on disposal of unlisted investment
ooooog securities - (978)
oooooooooooo (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
0o plant and equipment (2,533) 896
ooooooooo Impairment loss recognised in respect
of investments in securities 2,043 -
ooon Interest income (121,293) (26,223)
oooooono Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts (7,414) (12,120)
0000o0o0Oooo Operating cash flows before movements
gooooo in working capital 336,111 356,685
oooo Increase in inventories (3,390,410) (1,292,915)
oooooo Increase in trade debtors (373,644) (152,232)
ooooooooo Increase in other debtors, deposits
oooooo and prepayments (3,701,449) (1,437,585)
oooooooon Decrease (increase) in amounts due
oooo from customers for contract work 374,206 (511,123)
oooo0Dooooo Decrease in amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 4,182 43,619
ooo00o0DOoDOooooon Increase (decrease) in amounts due to
customers for contract work 536,108 (151,528)
oooooao Increase in trade creditors 911,046 300,663
000000000000 Decrease in other creditors and accrued
charges (63,011) (69,094)
oooooo Increase in deposits received 12,463,862 7,500,837
00oo0o00O0O00OO00O Increase in amount due to ultimate
holding company 6,163 5,884
ooooDOoooon Increase (decrease) in value added tax
0000ooo0oo and other taxes payable 3,597 (25,448)
00000000000 oooao Net cash generated from operations 7,106,761 4,567,763
oooO Interest received 121,293 26,223
oooo Dividends paid (9,513) (7,135)
ooooo Income tax paid (13,910) (14,837)
goo0ooooooon NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,204,631 4,572,014
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

000o0o0ooopoDOooDbOD0OO0OO0ggg For the year ended 31st December, 2004
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NOTES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments in securities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Increase in bank deposits
Net cash outflow from partial disposal
of interests in a subsidiary (net of
cash and cash equivalents disposed of) 30
Investment in an associate
Decrease in pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend received from unlisted
investment securities
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a
subsidiary (net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired) 31
Proceeds from sale of investments
in securities

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Repayment of other loans
New bank loans raised
Other loans raised
Advance from ultimate holding company

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank deposits

Investments in securities (Matured
within 3 months)

2004 2003
ooooo ooooo
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
(4,479,002) (19,643)
(710,298) (275,321)
(491,146) (98,765)
(80,863) =
(9,630) =
47,584 54,220
24,370 6,091
645 222

= 59,902

= 9,600
(5.698,340) (263,694)
(468,578) (2,789,841)
(58,123) (122,518)
(818) (40,927)
115,500 1,384,462
2,822 8,427

500 135,520
(408,697) (1,424,877)
1,097,594 2,883,443
4,125,440 1,241,997
5,223,034 4,125,440
4,560,239 3,670,679
261,288 158,652
401,507 296,109
5,223,034 4,125,440
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GENERAL

The Company is established as a joint stock limited company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and its H
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is Harbin Power Plant
Equipment Group Corporation (“HPEGC"), a state-owned
enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in notes 15 and 16, respectively.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
("HK GAAP") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

HK GAAP differs in certain aspects from the accounting
principles and financial regulations established by the
relevant PRC authorities (“PRC GAAP"). The Company is
required to issue a separate set of statutory financial
statements made up to 31st December each year prepared
in accordance with PRC GAAP.

For the year ended 31st December, 2004, there were no
significant differences between the net assets and results of
the Group in the financial statements prepared under PRC
GAAP and those prepared under HK GAAP.

Hh
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POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY
ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") issued a number of new or revised
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") (herein collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2005.
The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2004.

Management is assessing, but has not yet determined, the
potential impact of these new HKFRSs will have on its
financial position and results of operations. These new
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how the
results and financial position are presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December each year.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’'s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the
year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
are stated at the Group's share of the net assets less any
identified impairment loss.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the
year. In the Company's balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment loss.

Revenue recognition
Development properties

Income from properties developed for sale, where there are
no pre-sales prior to completion of development, is
recognised on the execution of a binding sales agreement
or when the occupation permit is issued by the relevant
authority, whichever is the later.

Income from properties pre-sold prior to completion of
development is recognised when the occupation permit is
issued by the relevant authority.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from construction contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that they have
been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred where it is probable will be
recoverable.

i
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation is provided to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction-in-progress over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per

annum:

Land use rights Over the term of the rights
Buildings 3.23% - 6.47%
Plant and machinery 6.47% - 13.86%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10.78% - 19.40%
Motor vehicles 16.17% - 19.40%
Construction-in-progress Nil

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

Hh
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis
and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group
intends to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities)
are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual
amortisation of any discount or premium arising on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with
other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period
represents a constant yield on the investment.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any
impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method.

Properties under development for sale are stated at
development cost incurred to date less provision for
foreseeable losses, if any.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs
for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When a contract covers a number of assets, the construction
of each asset is treated as a separate contract when separate
proposals have been submitted for each asset, each asset
has been separately negotiated and the costs and revenues
of each asset can be separately identified. A group of
contracts, performed concurrently or in a continuous
sequence, is treated as a single construction contract when
they were negotiated as a single package and are so closely
inter-related that they constitute a single project with an
overall profit margin.

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit costs charged to the income statement
represent the amount payable under a defined contribution
arrangement with the local government.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be

recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Hh



Ooogoo

Notes to the Financial Statements

000o0o0ooopoDOooDbOD0OO0OO0ggg For the year ended 31st December, 2004

gooooooon

ooo

dddoooooooOoOoOoDoOoboObDO
oooooo

oobooboOoboOoOobobOOoOoOoDbOOO
ooboooobooboooOooboobon
oobob0o0obOOo0ooOOobDDobob0oDO
oo0bob0oOobOOobObOOobDDbOoooDOo
ooooooooo

oboboooOoooOOobooooboooboo
ooooo0o0oOoOobobOOoOoOoobOOoOon
ooooo0o0oOoOobobOOoOoOoobOOoOon
ooboooOobbOooOooOoOooOoboOoo
obooooboooOOobOOoOobooobOon
ooooo0oOoOob0bOOOoO0bOOoO0On
ooooo0oOoOob0bOOOoO0bOOoO0On
ooooobooOOoO0oboobooOOoOoon

oobooboOoboOoOobobOOoOoOoDbOOO
obooooboooOOobOOoOobooobOon
oboooOobOOooOOobOOoODOooboOoo
ooooOoobOOoO0oboOoOoOobDoOoOoon

oboboooOooooboOoobooboo
oobobooobOooobooboboOoDo
ooooooooOooooOooOoODO
ooboboooooDoobooobooDo
ooo0ooboOon

doddooooooooOoOooDOoboObDO
oobobooobOOobooOobDDbOobOoDo
ooboboobOOobooOobDDbOoooDo
oobooooboooOOobOOOoOOoDbOOooo
oboooooboooooOOooboobOon
0oooo

5
o6 |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes income statement items that are never
taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
tempo